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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited
(“the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
("the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, its
profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs),
as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the ‘Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements' section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics' issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director's report but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon,

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these] financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irreqularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, aor has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a gquarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

»  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

»  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022, included in these financial
statements, have been audited by the predecessor auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on
those statements on September 30, 2022.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order"), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books except for hotel operations, for which, the
Company does not have server physically located in India for daily backup of the books of
account and other books and papers maintained in electronic mode, as more fully explained in
Note 52 to the financial statements;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account [and with the returns received from
the branches not visited by us;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
ules, 2015, as amended;
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(e) On the hasis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 2" to this report;

(g) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company
for the year ended March 31, 2023;

(h) The observation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in paragraph (b) above.

(i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements - refer note 35 to the financial statements;

i. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

iil.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the note 51 to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity, including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries"”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behall of the Company
("Ultimate Beneficiaries') or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the note 51 to the financial statements, no funds have been received by
the Campany from any person(s) or entity, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties"),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries") or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.
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v. No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

vi.  As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the
Company only w.e.f. April 1, 2023, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

N

per Amit Singh

Partner

Membership Number: 408869
UDIN: 23408869BGXKNC4898
Place of Signature: Pune

Date: September 29, 2023
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Re: EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited (the “Company™)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books
of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, we state that:

(i) (a)(A)

() (axB)

(1) (b)

() (c)

@

) (e

(i) (a)

(i) (b)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

Property, Plant and Equipment have not been physically verified by the management
during the year but there is a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and of the Company and the nature
of its assets.

The title deeds of immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in
note 3 and 4 to the financial statements are held in the name of the Company. These
immovable properties are pledged with the banks and their title deeds are not available
with the Company. The same has not been independently confirmed by the bank and
hence we are unable to comment on the same.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets
during the year ended March 31, 2023, and accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Based on the information and explanations given to us, there are no proceedings initiated
or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition
of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder, Accordingly,
requirement to report on clause 3(i)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year. In our opinion the coverage and the procedure of such verification by the
management is appropriate. Discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each class of

inventory were not noticed during such physical verification.

The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores in
aggregate from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of the year on the
basis of security of current assets. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(i) (a)

(i) (b)

i) (©)

(iii) (d)

(i) (e)

(i) (F)

During the year the Company has provided advances in nature of loans to parties other
than subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates as follows

Rs. (In Lakhs)

Particulars Advancgs in nature of
loans to'employees

Aggregate amount granted during the year 1.56

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date 2.26

Other than the above the Company has not provided loans, stood guarantee or provided
security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties.

During the year, the terms and conditions of the grant of advance in the nature of loans
to employees are not prejudicial to the Company's interest.

Since during the year, the Company has not made any investment, provided guarantees,
provided security and granted loans to any other entities/parties, other than mentioned
above, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)X(b), 3(iii(c), 3(i(d), 3(iii(e) and (i)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company in respect of any entities/parties other
than mentioned above.

The Company has granted advance in the nature of loans to employees during the year
where the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been
stipulated and the repayment or receipts are regular, except in respect of certain loans
granted to the Companies, where the schedule for repayment of principal and repayment
of interest have not been stipulated and is recoverable on demand, Hence, we are unable
to make a specific comment on the reqularity of repayment of principal and payment of
interest in respect of such loan.

There are no amounts of loans granted to companies and advances in the nature of loans
granted to employees which are overdue for more than ninety days.

There were no loans granted to companies or advance in the nature of loan granted to
employees which had fallen due during the year, that have been renewed or extended or
fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same parties.
Hence, the requirements under paragraph 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the
company.

As disclosed in note 7 to the financial statements, the Company has granted loans
repayable on demand to Companies. Of these following are the details of the aggregate
amount of loans to related parties as defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the Companies
Act, 2013:

Rs. (In lakhs)
Particulars All Parties Related Parties
Aggregate amount of loans repayable on 5,199.77 5,199.77
demand
Percentage of loans to the total loan 100% 100%

There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions
of sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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)

(vi)

(vii) (@)

(vii) (b)

(viii)

(ix) (@)

(ix) (b)

(ix) (©)

(ix) (d)

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any
amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the
Companies Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records under Section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the products/services of the Company.

The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it. According to
the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed
by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were
outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

According to the information and explanation given to us and examination of records of
the Company, the dues of income tax, goods and service tax, custom duty, cess or any
other statutory dues on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Rs. (In lakhs)
Name of the Nature of Amount Period to Forum where
Statute Dues which amount | dispute is pending
relates
Income Tax Income Tax 624.95 | Financial Year | Commissioner of
Act 1961 2019-20 Income-tax
(Appeals)
Goods and Good and 2.68 | Financial Year | Joint
Service Tax Service Tax 2017-18 Commissioner
Act 2017 of State Tax
(Appeals)

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in
the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income
during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

Loans amounting to Rs. 289.00 lakhs are repayable on demand and terms and conditions
for payment of interest thereon have not been stipulated. Such loans and interest
thereon have not been demanded for repayment during the relevant financial year. The
Company has not defaulted in repayment of other borrowings or payment of interest
thereon to any lender.

Based on the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not been
declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any
government authority.

In our opinion and according to the explanation provided to us, term loans were applied
for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on
short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.
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(ix) (e)

(ix) (F)

(x) (@)

(x) (b)

(xi) (a)

(xi) (b)

(xi) (c)

(xii) (@)/(b)/(c)

(xiin)

(xiv) (@)

(xiv) (b)

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has
not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of
its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. Hence, the requirement to report on
clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer /
further public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on
clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares

/fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and

hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

No fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xi)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 has been filed by us in Form ADT- 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As represented to us by management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xi)c)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, the requirements to report on clause 3(xii)(@), 3(xiiXb) and 3(xii)(c) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, Transactions
with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of Companies Act, 2013
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section
177 are not applicable to the Company and accordingly the requirements to report under
clause 3(xiii) of the Order insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable
to the Company.

The Company does not have an internal audit system and is not required to have an
internal audit system under the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, the requirement to report under clause 3(xiv)(a) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

The Company does not have an internal audit system and is not required to have an
internal audit system under the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, the requirement to report under clause 3(xiv)(b) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.
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(xv)

(xviX@)/(b)/(c)

(xvix(d)

(xvii)

(xviii)

{(xix)

(xx) (a)/(b)

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are
not applicable to the Company. Further, the Company has not conducted any Non-
Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities and is not a Core Investment Company as
defined in the requlations made by Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3(xvi)Xa), 3(xvi)h), 3(xvi)c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Group does not have more than one CIC as part of the Group, hence, the requirement
to report on clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current year and immediately preceding
financial year respectively. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvii) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

There has been no resignation causing casual vacancy of the statutory auditors during
the year and accordingly requirement to report on clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 43 to the financial statements,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of
the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as
and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within
a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as
and when they fall due.

The provisions of Section 135 to the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to Corporate Social
Responsibility is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report
on clause 3(xx)(a), 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

Y

per Amit Singh

Partner

Membership Number: 408862

UDIN: 23408869BGXKNC4898
Place of Signature: Pune
Date: September 29, 2023
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Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Financial Statements of
EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act')

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of EON-
Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited (“the Company") as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with
our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAl. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to these financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deterijorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

A,

per Amit Singh

Partner

Membership Number: 408869
UDIN: 23408869BGXKNC4898

Place of Signature: Pune
Date: September 29, 2023



EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited

Balance sheet as at March 31, 2023
[All amounts are in Rupees lakhs unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
Notes March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Assets
MNon-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 3,642.71 3,762.63
Investment property ) 2,961.73 3,087.28
Intangible assets 5 - -
Investments 6 2,500.00 2,500.00
Financial assets
Other financial assets 8 23268 224,99
Income tax assets (net) 9 - 388.93
Other non-current assets 11 22.27- g4z
Deferred tax assets (net) 10 114.40 183.98
Total non current assets 9,473.80 10,156.23
Current assets
Inventories 12 57.60 37.63
Financial assets
Investments 6 0.82 70.01
Loans 7 5,199.77 5,381.00
Tracle receivabiles 13 408.01 152.44
Cash and cash equivalants 14 781.63 387.91
Other bank balances 14.1 230.63 72.20
Other financial assets 8 4,629.580 4,141.53
Other current assets 11 162.25 254.90
Total current assets 11,470.51 10,497.62
Total assets 20,944.31 _20,653.85
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 15 1,020.40 1,020.40
Other equity 16 10,162.68 8,717.43
Total equity 11,183.08 9,737.83
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 17 £,919.63 8,280.25
Other financial liabilities 18 152.66 56.24
Deferred revenue 21 19.09 19.47
Provisions 22 33.59 25.82
Non-current liabilities 7,124.97 8,381.78
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 17 1649.62 1182.01
Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 18 21.38 12.14
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 14 527.87 869.00
enterprises
Other financial liabilities 18 225.97 330.33
Other current liabilities 20 157.50 129.46
Deferred revenue 21 13.16 5.10
Provisions 22 18.34 6.20
Current tax liabilities (net) 23 22.42 -
Current liabilities 2,636.26 2,534.24
Total liabilities 9,761.23 10,916.02
Total equity and liabilities 20,944.31 20,653.85
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial staterents.
As per our report of even date
ForSRBC&COLLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited
ICAI Firm registration no.324982E/E300003 CIN : U70102PN2005PTC139080 '\d z
T
/WA
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per Amit Singh Atul Chordia aresh Nanaware
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Membership No: 408869 DIN: 00054998 DIN: 00054123 Membership No: A56381
Plate: Pune Place; Bangkok Place: Pune Flace: Pune

Date: September 29, 2023 Date: September 29, 2023 Date: September 29, 2023




EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2023
[All amounts are in Rupees lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
Notes March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Income
Revenue fram operations 25 5,664.18 2,605.79
Other income 26 789.15 G0E.8Y
Total income (1) 6,453.33 3,214.68
Expenses
Cost of sales 27 409,64 150.62
Employee benefits expense 28 735.26 540.36
Other expenses 29 2,127.48 1,006.95
Total expenses (1) 3,272.38 1,737.93
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) 3,180.95 1,476.75
(1) - ()
Finance costs 30 771.13 780,81
Depreciation and amortisation expense 31 395.41 434,69
1,166.54 1,215.50
Profit before tax 2,014.41 261.25
Tax expenses:
Current tax 488.10 =
Deferred tax 72.47 29.10
Total tax expenses 560.57 29,10
Profit for the year 1,453.84 232.15
Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive Income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods :
Re-measurement gains/{loss) on defined benefit plans (11.48) 0.02
Deferred tax effect 2.89 {0.01)
Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss (8.59) 0.01
in subsequent periods (net of tax)
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 1,445.25 232.16
Earnings per equity share [nominal value of share Rs. 10
(Marech 31, 2022: Rs. 10)]
Basic and diluted 32 14.16 228
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date
ForSRBC& COLLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited
ICAIl Firm registration no.324982E/E300003 CIN : U70102PN2005PTC139080
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Date: September 29, 2023
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EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited

Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in Rupees lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Year ended
March 31, 2022

A. Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before tax

Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortisation ’
Profit on sale of investment

Provision for doubtful receivables and advances
Provision or credit balance written off

Profit on sale of fixed assets

Interest expenses

Interest income

Operating profit before working capital changes
Movements in working capital :

{Increase) in other financial assets

(Increase) in inventories

(Increase) in trade receivables

Decrease in loans

{Increase)/decrease in other assets

(Decrease) in other financial liabilities

Increase in provisions

Increase/{decrease) in trade payables

Increase in deferred revenue

Increase in other liabilities

Cash generated from operations

Incame taxes paid (net of refunds}

Net cash flow from operating activities (A)

B. Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds on redemption / sale of investment in units of mutual funds

Purchase of investment in units of mutual funds

Mavement in fixed deposits having remaining maturity of more than 12 months
Movement in fixed deposits having remaining maturity of more than 3 menths
Interest received

Net cash flow used in investing activities (B)

C. Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings

Repayments of borrowings

Interest paid

Net cash flow used in financing activities ('C)

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Compaonents of cash and cash equivalents

2,014.41 261.25
395,96 436.17
{1.21) {B.56)
17.62 0.83
(4.81) g
(20.72) =
763.45 776.70
{575.60) (572.22)
2,589.10 894.17
(7.25) +
(19.97) {1.86)
(268.38) (38.07}
181.23 194.00
78.80 (135.44)
{10.00} (120.06)
8.43 8.02
(331.89} 69.53
7.68 21.13
28.04 51,79
2,255.79 943.21
{76.75) {165.95)
2,179.04 777.27
(156,97 (43.74)
27.20 2
260.40 1,358.93
{190.00) (839.96)
{0.44) {13.22)
(158.43) (72.20)
87.33 64.29
(130.91) 454.10
470,00 (459.02)
(1,363.01) 219.92
(761.40) (775.67)
(1,654,41) (1,014.77)
393.72 216.60
387.51 17131
781.63 387.91

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Cash on hand
Balances with banks:
- an current accounts
Total cash and cash equivalents {note 14)

Summary of significant accounting policies
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

ForSRBC& CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm registration no.324982E/E300003

N

per Amit Singh

Partner

Membership No: 408869
Place: Pune

Date: September 29, 2023

2.30 2.28
779.33 385.63
781.63 387.91

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
EDN-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited
CIN : U70102PN2005PTC139080

Atul Chordia
Director

DIN: DOD54998
Place: Bangkok
Date: September 29, 2023

DIN: 00054123
Place: Pune
Date: September 29, 2023

Campany Secretary
iembership No; A56381
Place; Pune

Date: September 29, 2023



EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts are in Rupees lakhs unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid-up No. af shares (in lakhs) Amount

As at April 1, 2021 102.04 1,020.40
As at March 31, 2022 102.04 1,020.40
As at March 31, 2023 102.04 1,020.40

B. Other equity

Attributable to the equity holders

Securities premium) Retained earnings| Total
Balance as at April 01, 2021 6,471.98 2,013.29 8,485.27
Profit for the year “ 232.15 232.15
Other comprehensive income 0.01 0.01
Total comprehensive income z 232.16 232.16
Balance as at March 31, 2022 6,471.98 2,245.45 8,717.43
Profit for the year % 1,453.84 1,453.84
Other comprehensive income (8.59) (8.59)
Total comprehensive income - 1,445.25 1,445.25
Balance as at March 31, 2023 5,471.98 3,690.70 10,162.68

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

ForSRBC& COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration no.324982E/E300003

perAmit Singh

Partner

Membership No: 408869
Place: Pune

Date: September 29, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited
CIN : U70102PN2005PTC139080

Atul Chordia rChordia

Director Director
DIN: 00054998 DIN: 00054123
Place: Bangkok Place: Pune

Date: September 29, 2023

Date: September 29, 2023

i
/é esh Nanaware
Company Secretary
Membership No: A56381
Place; Pune
Date: September 28, 2023



EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited

Notes to financial stat nts for the year ended March 31, 2023

1. Corporate Information

EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited ("the Company") is a private company domiciled in India and incorparated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, The
Company is engaged in the business of hotel operations and real estate development and sale.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023 were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors on September 29,
2023,

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
2.1 Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2016 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division 11 of Schedule |1 to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule 11}, as
applicable,

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments which have been measured at fair value or revalued amount at the
end of each reporting periad, as explained under accounting policy 2.16

The financials statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to nearest lakhs{'00,000) except when otherwise indicated.

The Company has prepared the financial statements on the basis that it will continue to operate as a going cancern,
The financial statements provide comparative information in respect of the previous period.

2.2 Current versus non-current
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-current classification.

An asset is classified as a current asset when it is either:

- Expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in the nermal operating cycle;

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting perlod; or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability Tor at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current assets.

A liability is classified as a current liability when either:

- It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;

- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current. Deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) are classified as non-current assets / {liabilities).

The Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalent. The Company has identified twelve months as its
operating cycle.

2.3 Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as non-current and current investments, at fair value, at each balance sheel dale.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability In an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the |iability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability or in
the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
The fair value of an asset or a llability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in thejr economic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s abllity to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or
by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and hest use. The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances
and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unohservable inputs.

Al assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial information are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole.

- Level 1 — Ouoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

- Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable

. Level 3 — Valuation techniques far which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unohservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial information at fair value on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between
Jevels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categarization (based on the lowest level input that Is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.




EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited

Motes to financial stat its for the year ended March 31, 2023

This note summarizes accounting policy for fair value,
- Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
« Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy
- Financial instruments {including those carried at amortized cost)

The Company's management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such unguoted financial assets measured at fair value, and for
non-recurring measurement, such as non-current assets held for sale.

External valuation experts are involved for valuation of significant assets and llabilities, Involvement of axternal valuation experts is decided upon annually by the management.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and llabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liabality
and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.
This note summarises accaunting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.

2.4 Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services 1o a customer
i.e. an transfer of control of the goods or service to the customer. Revenue from sales of goods or rendering of services is net of Indirect taxes, returns and discounts.

(i) Hotel Operations

Rooms, Food, Beverage and other allied hotel services including banquet services:

Revenue is recognised at the transaction price that Is allocated to the perfarmance obligation. Revenue includes room revenue, food and beverage sale and banquet services
which is recognised once the rooms are occupied, food and beverages are sold and banguet services have been provided as per the contract with the customer.

in relation to other allied hotel services, the revenue has been recognized by reference to the time of service rendered.

(li} Rendering of services

Rental income from investment property:

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising
is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negetiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised aver the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned. The
Company collects goods and service tax on behalf of the government and, therefore, these are not economic benefits flowing to the Company. Hence, they are excluded from
revenue.

Maintenance and service charge

Maintenance and service charges arising from operating leases are recognised as and when the services are rendered. The Company collects goods and service tax on behalf of
the government and therefore, it is not an economic benefit flowing to the Company. Hence, it is excluded fram revenue.

Other operating revenue

Other operating revenue arising from operating lease s recognized as and when the services are rendered and are shown net of expenses i.e. electricity expenses.

(ifl) Sale of construction material and interior fit-outs

Revenue from sale of construction materials and Interior fit-outs is recognized when control of the goods have been transferred to the customer.

The Company collects goods and service tax on behalf of the government and, therefore, these are not economic benefits flowing to the Company. Hence, they are excluded from
revenue.

(iv) Interest Income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter perlod, where appropriate, to the net cattying amount of the financial asset. Interest income is
included i other income in the statement of profit and loss.

Varlable Consideration:

If the consideration in a cantract includes a variable amount (like volume rebates/incentives, cash discounts etc.), the Company estimates the amount of consideration to which it
will be entitled in exchange Tor rendering the services to the customer. The variable cansideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that
a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved. The estimate of variable consideration for expected future volume rebates/incentives, cash discounts etc. are made on the most llkely amount method. Revenue is
disclosed net of such amounts.

Contract balances

Trade receivables
A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional {i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is
due). Refer to accounting policy no. 2.16 Financial instruments — Financial assets at amortised cost.




EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Contract liabilities

A contract llability is the obligation to render services to a customer for which the Company has recelved consideration (or an amount of consideration Is due) from the customer.
If a customer pays consideration before the Company renders services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Refund liabilities

A refund liability is the obligation to refund some or all the consideration received (or receivable) from the customer and is measured at the amount the Company Ultimately
expects it will have to return ta the customer. The Company updates its estimates of refund liabilities (and the corresponding change in the transaction price) at the end of each
reporting period.

2.5 Foreign currencies

The Company's financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (‘INR'), which is its functional currency and presentation of currency of primary economic environment in
which company aperates,

2.5.1 Transactions and balances

Initial recognition: Transactions in foreign currency are initially recorded at the functional currency spot rate of exchange at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

2.5.2 Translation and exchange differences

Monetary items: Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at their respective functional currency exchange rate prevailing at the reporting
date, Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised In statement of profit or loss.

Non-manetary jtems: Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a fareign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of initial recognition.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on
translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (‘OCI') or profit or loss are also recognised in OCl or profit or loss, respectively).

2.6 Taxes
2.6.1 Current income tax

Current Income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amounts expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities; an the basis of the taxable profits
computed for the current accounting period in accordance with Income Tax Act, 1961. The tax rates used to compute the amount is the effective tax rate applicable to the
Company for the period.

Current income tax relating to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity s recognised In other comprehensive Income or in equity, respectively, and
not in the Profit or Loss, The Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

2.6.2 Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financlal reporting
purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

- when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable prafit or loss; in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint arrangements, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be contrelled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses, Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses can be utilised, except:

- when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a busines:
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

-in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests In joint arrangements, deferred tax assets are recognised onl
to the extent that it is prabable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be avallable against which the temporary differences
can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable low the deferred tax asset to be recovered.




EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited

Notes to financial stat its for the year ended March 31, 2023

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rales that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liabllity is settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in OC| or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enfarceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate
to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progess

Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress, are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment |osses, if any. Cost comprises of
purchase price, directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use and borrowing costs, if the recognition criteria are met.

The cost also include initial estimate of decommissioning, restoring and similar liabilities. Any trade discount or rebate are deducted in arriving al purchase price, Such cost
include the cost of replacing parts of property, plant and equipment.

When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals; the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives.
Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost Is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied.
All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

CWIP comprises of cost of property plant and equipment that are not yet ready for intended use as at balance sheet date.

Depreciation is calculated on a written down value basis using the rates arrived at, based on the management's estimated useful lives. The identified components are depreciated
separately aver their useful lives; the remaining components are depreciated over the life of the principal asset. The Company has used the fallowing useful lives to provide
depreclation on is property, plant and eguipment.

Asset description Useful lives estimated by | Useful lives estimated by Useful life as per Schedule Il (years)
the Management (years) - | the Management {years) -
Hotel Commercial leasing
Building 30 Refer note 2.8 60
Piant and machinery 13 20 15
Electrical installations 13 20 10
Furniture and fixtures 10 15 10
Office equipment 13 20 5
Computers 5] [ B
Vehicles 10 10 10

The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates the assets over estimated useful lives which are different from
the useful life prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the
period over which the assets are likely to be used.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset 1s derecognised.

The management undertakes a review of the residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period and
adjustments are made whenever necessary.

2.8 Investment property

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

The cost includes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of the investment
property are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on thelr specific useful lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are
recognised in Statement of profit and |oss as Incurred.

The Company depreciates building component of investment property on written down value basis aver 60 years from the date of original purchase.

Though the Company measures Investment property using cost-based measurement, the fair value of investment property is disclosed In the notes. Fair values are determined
based on an annual evaluation performed by an accredited external independent valuer applying a valuation model recommended by the International Valuation Standards
Committes.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected
from their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in Statement of profit and loss in the period of
derecognition.
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Notes to financial stat its for the year ended March 31, 2023

2.9 Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost, Following initial recogpition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any,

The Company amartized intangible assets over their estimated useful life i.e, over its license period i.e. 5 years.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

2.10 Leases

The Compahy assesses at contract inception whether a contract Is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract canveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
pertad of time in exchange for consideration.

2.10.1 Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising
is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct casts incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the |ease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Lease income from operating leases (Lessor accounting): Ind AS 17 did not mandate straight-lining of lease escalation, If they are In line with the expected general infiation
compensating the lessor for expected inflationary cost. No relief under Ind AS 116 like Ind AS 17 fram stralght lining of lease rentals, so a lessor is required to recognize lease
payments from operating leases as income on either a straight-line basis or another systematic basis. Accordingly, the company has followed Ind AS 116.

2.11 Borrowings costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur, Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

2.12 Inventories

Inventory of food, beverages and tobacco are valued at lower of cost and estimated net realizable value. Cost is determined on a weighted average basis. Cost include cost of
purchase including duties and taxes (other than refundable), inward freight, and other expenditure directly attributable to the purchase.

Net realizable valie is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.13 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any Indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an
asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or CGU's fair value less costs of disposal and
its value in use. [t is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are |argely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assats. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing the valug in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and risks specific to the asset. In determining the fair value less costs to disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions
can be identified, an appropriate valuation madel is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or other
available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the Company’s cash generating units to
which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For langer periods, 2 long-term growth rate s calculated
and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year.

Impairment |asses of continuing operations are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
2.14 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of @ past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects same or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for
example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as @ separate asset, but only when the reimbursemient is virtually certain. The expense relating to a
provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.
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2.15 Retirement and other employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund.
The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service.

Defined benefit plans

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan. The cost of providing henefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method as per
payment of gratuity act, 1972,

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and |osses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the
return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit
or credit ta retained earnings thraugh OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit of loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier oft
- the date of the plan amendment er curtailment, and
- the date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Met interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit
obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

- Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and nen-rautine settlements; and

- Net interest expense or income

Provision far comg ted at a5

Accumnulated leave, which is expected to be utllized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such
absences as the additional amount that It expects to pay as a result of the unused entitiement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes, Such long-term
compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit methed at the year-end. The Cornpany recognises the entire changes in
the obligation, including remeasurements in the statement of profit and loss for the year. The Company presents the entire leave as a current liability in the balance sheet, since it
does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 manths after the reporting date.

2.16 Financial instruments

A financial instrument Is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

2.16.1 Financial assets
Classification
Financial assets

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income ('FVTOCK') ar fair value through
profit or loss ('FYTPL).

Initial recognition and measurement

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Company's business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component ar for which the Company has applied the practical expedient, the Company
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
cantain a slgnificant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under Ind AS 115.
Refer ta the accounting policies in section (d) Revenue from contracts with customers.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and
interest (SPP1)’ on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that
are not SPP| are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Company's business mode| for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both, Financlal assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the ohjective to hold financial assets in arder to collect contractual cash flows while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through
OC| are held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades] are
recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Campany commits 1o purchase or sell the asset.
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Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two categories:
a) At amortised cost
b} At fair value through profit or loss (FVTRL)

(a} Financial assets classified as measured at amortised cost
A financial asset shall be measured at amortised cost if bath of the following conditions are met:

the financial asset is held within a business model whase objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect cantractual cash flows and
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are salely payments of principal and interest an the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate {‘EIR’) method, less Impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance
expense/ (income) in the statement of profit and loss. The |osses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to
trade receivables, security and other deposits receivable by the Company.

(b}  Financial assets classified as measured at FVTPL

A Financial asset shall be measured at FVTPL, unless it is measured at amortised cost . The Campany classifies all equity or puttable financial instruments held for trading as
measured at FVTPL. Such instruments are measured at fair value at initial recognition as well as at each reporting date. The fair value changes are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss eg mutual fund. Further, the Company may make an irrevocable election to designate a financial asset as FVTPL, at initial recognition, to reduce or eliminate a
measurement or recognition Inconsistency.

Equity investments
Investment in equity shares of associates have been measured at cost less impairment allowance as per Ind AS 27.

De-recognition

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company's Balance Sheet) when the rights to
receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the assel.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 108, the Company applies expected credit loss ('ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment |oss on the following financial assets and
credit risk exposure:

Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Trade receivables

The Company follows ‘simplified appraach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company Lo Lrack changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at
each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since
initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12 month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss, However, if credit tisk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL
is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there Is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity
reverts to recognising impalrment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECLis a portion of the lifetime
ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive {i.e.,

all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate (EIR). When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider all contractual terms of the financial
instrument over the expected life of the financial instrument,

The Company estimates the following provision matrix at the reporting date:

Particulars Not due Within 120 days* More than 120 days*

ECL Rate 0% 0% 100%

* Provision is matle for receivables where recovery is considered doubtful irrespective of due date. Where an amount is outstanding for more than 120 days the Company usually
provides for the same unless there is clear visibility of recovery.
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ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The balance sheet presentation
for various financial instruments is described below:

Financial assets measured at amortised cost, revenue receivables and lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an Integral part of the measurement of those
assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount, Until the asset meets wrile-off criteria, the Campany does not reduce impairment allowance from
the pross carrying amount.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments based an shared credit risk characteristics with the ebjective of facllitating
an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

The impairment loss/ {gain) Is recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except for impairment loss/ (gain) on financial assets measured at FVOCI, which shall be recognised
in the OCL

2.16.2 Financial liabilities

Classification
Financial liabilities are classified, at iitial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost or at fair value through profit or loss {'FVTRLY).

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value net of, in the case of financial liabilities not classified as fair value through profit or loss {'FVTPL'), transaction costs that are
attributable to the issue of the financial liability. Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Balance Sheet when the Company becames a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include finaneial liabilities heid for trading and financial liabilities designated as such upon initial recognition. Financial
fiabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financlal instruments entered
into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind A5 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on lfabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities designated as such upon initial recognition at the initial date of recognition, if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair
value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risks are recognized in OCl. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to the statement of profit and loss.
However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

This is the most relevant category to the Company. The Company generally classifies interest bearing borrowings as financial liabilities carried at amortised cost. After initial
recognition, thase instruments are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and |osses are recognised in statement of profit and loss when the
liabillties are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included
as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss,

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the abligation under the llability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

2.16.3 Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabillties simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be cantingent on
future events and must be anfarceable in the normal course of busiriess and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company ar the counterparty,

2,17 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an insighificant risk of changes in value.

In the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and shart-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are constdered an
integral part of the company's cash management.

2.18 Cash dividend distribution to equity holders

The Company recagnises a liability to make cash distribution to its equity shareholders in form of dividend, when the distribution is autharised and the distribution is no longer at
the Company's discretion. As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders in the general meeting. The
Company accordingly recognises dividend after it is approved in the shareholders’ meeting. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.
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2.19 Segment Reporting

An operating segment is a component of a company whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the Company's chief operating decision maker {CODM]) to make decisions
about resource allacation and assess its performance and for which discrete financial information is available. The Company has identified the Board of Directors of the Company
as its CODM.

2.20 Contingent liability

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or mare uncertain future
events beyond the control of the Company.

A contingent liability can arise for obligations that are possible, but it is yet to be confirmed whether there is present abligation that could lead to an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits.

The Company also discloses contingent fiability when it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or a
sufficiently reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

The Company does not recognise a cantingent liability but only makes disclosures for the same in the financial information.
2.21 Earnings per share (EPS)

@asic and diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year,

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per sharg, the net profit for the year attributable to the equity sharehalders and the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year, are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares,

2.22 Measurement of EBITDA

The Company has elected to present earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of statement of profit and loss. The
Company measures EB[TDA on the basis of profit/ (loss) from continuing operations. In its measurement, the Company does not include depreciation and amortization expense,
finance costs and tax expense.

Note 2A : Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

1ent to make judgl imates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,

The preparation of the financial information requires g
assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result In outcomes
that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of asset or liability affected in future periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the accounting palicles, management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial information:

Operating lease commitments — Company as lessor

The Company has entered Into commercial property leases on its investment property portfolio. The Company has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a major part of the economic life of the commercial property and the fair value of the asset, that it retains
all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties and accounts for the lease contracts as operating leases.

Classification of assets as property, plant and equipment and investment property

The Company has entered into commercial leasing of one of its asset. The Company has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements,
such as the lease term not constituting @ major part of the economic life of the commercial property and the fair value of the asset, that the change in use of the asset is short
term in nature. Also, the Company does not intend to hold this asset for capital appreciation or to earn rental ncome on a long term basis, Hence the asset is continued to be
classified under property, plant and equipment.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when
the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances
arising beyond the Company's contral. Such changes are reflectad in the assumptions when they occur.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabllities within the next financlal year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when
the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances
arising beyand the Company's control. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.
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Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making
various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due
to the complexities invalved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit abligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are
reviewed at each reporting date,

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates
of government bands in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary
increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates.

MNote 2B: New and amended standards

A dments to Standards effective 1 April 2022

Indian Accounting Standards rules have been amended via notification dated 23 March 2022. The amendments were applicable from 01 April 2022, but did nat have a material
impact on the financial statements of the Company.

o Amendments to Ind AS 101 - First-time Adoption of Ind AS

« amendments to Ind AS 103 - Business Combination

« Amendments to Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments

* Amendments to Ind AS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment

= Amendments to Ind AS 37 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

= Amendments to Ind AS 41 - Agriculture

Amendments to Standards effective 1 April 2023

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 dated 31 March 2023 to amend the foliowing ind AS which are
effective from 01 April 2023 which are not expected to have material impact on the financial statements of the Company.

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy infarmation, together with
other information, is material when it can reasonably be expectad to influence decisions of primary users of general purpose financial statements.

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes

The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases and decommissioning obligations. The amendments narrowed the scope of the
recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recagnition exemption) so that it no longer applies to transactions that, on Initial recognition, give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences.

Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates. The definition of a change in accounting estimates has been replaced
with a definition of accounting estimates, Under the new definition, accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainty”, Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in financial statements to be measured in a way that involves measurement uncertainty.




AMAIIIE YINS WO SNUIASL Woly Yo pallau uaag sey Ajanae (eluapou JBYI0 1oy pasn AlaulyDew 3 jueqd oy Jupeias (suye| 8T 'SH TTOE 'TE YMEBW) SuNe| BZ'T "5y 01 FLjpunowe uonesadag T

£9'Z9L'E ZE'9L - ZE'0T l6L6 S9'0€ T9'40T |esaLe SH'0S5'T 96'€09'T an|ea jooq 12N
_ |

TE'QSET 9ETIT T6'TLE PE'EY 96"t TS ZE'6HT Elard 1 SZ'S00'T # aauejeq uiso|)
= = 3 - - - - - - - sjesods|g
£5'90F £0°ST . 03°E £59 E0TT 9E1E 0092 B6°79T . seah ayl o) adieyd
8L'TS0E EE'96 T6'TLE PEGE EV'BE 80'GE 96°LTEZ 990t fidrd i) = Supuadp
ucpeadag palenwinady
v6'0zT'9 89°L81 T6'TLE 9T ES SL'YS 94'08 £6'ESE 66°858 04°955'7 96'€09'T ajuejeq Suisa|)
- - - - - - - 7 - - siEsodsig
PEZT - z- £ F vl SL°E S6°L . - suoIppy
00'860°9 89'L8T T6'TLE 9Z'es SL'tS 7569 8I'DSE v0'1S8 0£°555°2 96'E09°'T Suuadp
an|ea 3j00q 55049

je10L SUOIIE|[EFSUI [BIL1IDT pueq pjoyasea EETRIVETY siayndwo) sjuawdinba sauyo | seaniy pue asmyuang | Aauyaew pue jueld s3uipping pue| pjoyaasy
ZZ0Z ‘TE yoseyy e se uawdinba pue Jueyd ‘Aladoid
TLZHI'E SE'E9 g L6 86'9T TL'6E {208 €L'SEY LE'Z0Y'T 96'€09°T an|ea yoog 33N
LE'(BY'E EREZT I6°TLE 00°LT 6'ZS Z8'55 YEELT OE'6EY ELTST'T . asuejeq Juiso|)
SE'TPT # 3 86'8T " H M LETTT $ » s|esodsig
et et 5 0'E 861 LS SV 12'69 8¥'LYT = Jeah Al oy adiey)
TE'BSE'Z 9ETIT T6'TLE 6zl 96t 1108 ZEGHE 9v'Zsy SZ°S00'T iz Suado
uopeppaidag pajejnwnody
80'0£T'9 89'L8T T6TLE bl 9L Z6'69 €5'S8 TT'PSE £5°'0L8 0£'555°2 96'809'T ajuejeq Buiso|d
€8°LPT - - 00'TE - - fi EB'9TT . # sjesodsig
L6'95T . i By LT'5T LLt 810 LETET F F suapppy
¥6'02T°9 B9'L8T TE'TLE 9z'Es SL'PS 9L'08 E6ESE 56'858 04'5§58'Z 96'€09'T Suwadp
anjes Jooq s5040

jeloL sUDIIE||eISUl [EI3IE1T pue] ployasea EEIRITERY siajndwo) sjuswidinba 3010 | Seunixy pue aunyuang | Asaujyoew pue jueld sduippng pue| pjoyaaiy

£20Z 'TE yne e sejuawdinba pue jued ‘Aliadold - £ 310N

(Pa1E15 3s)raaY10 SSun syye| saadny ul 348 SIUNOLWE |1y)
£Z07 'TIE Yo1e | papua Jeah ay) 10} S1USLWIDIE]S |2IDUBLL O3 SBI0N

paLUI] 91BALId 2injonaselyu) ipemafulH-NOT




EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in Rupees lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 4 - Investment property as at March 31, 2023

Freehold land Bullding Total
Graoss book value
Opening 843.34 2,926.15 3,769.49
Additions H : -
Disposals - - .
Closing balance 843.34 2,926.15 3,769.49
Accumulated Depreciation
Opening - 682.21 682.21
Charge for the year . 125.55 125.55
Disposals - - -
Closing balance - 807.76 807.76|
Net book value 843.34 2,118.39] 2,961.73
Investment property as at NMarch 31, 2022

Freehold land Buildtng"; Total
Gross book value
Opening 843.34 2,905.37 3,748.71
Additions - 20.78 Zﬂj'
Disposals - . -
Closing balance 843.34 2,926.15 3,769.49
Accumulated Depreciation
Opening - 552.57| 552.57
Charge for the year - 129.64 129.64
Disposals - - -
Closing balance - 682.21 682.21
Net book value 843.34 2,243.94 3,087.28|

Notes

The Company's investment properties consist of commercial leasing properties in India. The title deeds of these invesiment properties are held in the name of the Company.

Information regarding income and expenditure of i property
Year ended| Year ended March|
March 31, 2023 31, 2022
Rental income derived from investment property 1,167.50 979.67
Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) generating rental income 123,57 54.09
Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) that did not generate rental income . =
Prafit arising from investment property before depreciation 1,043.93 925.58
and indirect
Less : Depreciation 125.55 129.64
Profit arising from investment property hefore indirect expenses 918.38 795.94
Reconciliation of fair value of the Investment properties are as under
Land Buildi Total
Balance as at April 1, 2021 7,052.00 4,933,00 11,985.00
Fair value movement for the year 271.00 209.00 480.00
Balance as at March 31, 2022 7,323.00 5,142.00 12,465.00
Fair value movement for the year 335.00 89.00 428.00]
Balance as at March 31, 2023 7,662.00 5,231.00 12,893.00

Description of valuation techniques used and key inputs to investment properties :

Valuation techniques

Significant

unobservable inputs

Range (weighted average)

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

Land Market Method

Bullding Market Method

Rate adoptad per sft.

Rate adopted per sft.

Rs. 5,650 Rs. 5,400

Rs. 2,600-3,250 Rs. 2,500-3,100

Description of valuation method

These valuations are based on valuations performed by Siddharth S. Thite & Associates, an accredited independent and Government certified valuer vide repart dated June 20, 2022

which is in compliance with rule 2 of the Companies (Registerad valuers and valuation) Rules, 2017. The valuation was conducted throu
approach the market value has been obtained by considering the sale consideration of the similar properties. Under this met
& and iegative factors associated with the property under valuation. For constructed properties depreciation market

rate is taken for valuation.

gh a market rate approach, Under this

hod average rate has been ohtained from various sale
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Note 5 - Intangible assets

As at March 31, 2023

Computer software Total

Deemed cost
Opening balance 26.50 26.50
Additions - 4
Disposals . -
Closing balance 26,50 26.50]
Acc lated amorti
Opening balance 26.50 26.50
Charge during the year - -
Disposals - <
Closing balance 26,50 26.50
Net book value - -
As at March 31, 2022

Ce software| Total
Deemed cost
Opening balance 26.50 26.50
Additions - -
Disposals - -
Closing balance 26,50 26.50]
Accumulated amaortisation
Opening balance 26.50 26.50
Charge during the year - E
Disposals - -
Closing balance 26.50 26.50]

Net book value




EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited

Motes to financial statements for the year ended Warch 31, 2023
(All amounts are In Rupeas lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Nota 6 - Investments

March 31, 2023|  March 31, 2022]  Warch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
MNon-Current Non-Current Current Current
|Investments at cost
Investment in associate
In in equity instr {ung 1)
2,20,00,000 (March 31, 2022; 2,20,00,000) equity shares of Hs. 11.36 each in Calista Properties 2,500.00] 2,500.00 - -
Private Limited
Investments at fair value through profit and loss
Investments in mutual fund
Investment in Mutual funds . - D.82 70.01
Total investments 2,500.00 2,500.,00] 0.82 70.01
Aggregated book value of unquoted investments 2,500.00 2,500.00 = {
Aggregated market value of unguoted investments - - 0.82 70.01
Note 7 - Loans
March 31,2023] March 31,2022 March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Non-Current| MNon-Current Current| Current
Atamortised cost
Unsecured, considered good
Inter-corporate deposit repayable on demand
- to related parties - - 94.00
- to others - | 5,199.77 5,287.00
Total Loans - - 5,199.77 5,381.00
As at March 31, 2023
Amount of loan | Percentage to the
Type of Borrower or advance inthe| total Loans and
nature of loan | Advances in the
outstanding nature of loans
Promoter - -
Directors 5 -
KMiPs = 3
Related Partizs =
As at March 31, 2022
Amount of loan | Percentage to the
Type of Borrower or advance in the |total Loans. and
nature of loan Advances in the
outstanding nature of loans
Promoter . =
Directors =
KMPs = =
Related Parties 94,00 1.75%
MNote B - Other finandial assets
March 31,2023| March 31, 2022|  March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Non-current MNon-current| Current Current
At amortised cost
Unsecured, considered good
Security deposit 106.89 102.30 2.66 i
Unsecured, considered good
Leng term deposit with bank with original maturity more than 12 months but -
- remaining maturity period less than 12 months - - 13,66 9.47|
- remaining maturity period more than 12 months (refer below note) 102.16 10551 - =
209.05 208.21 16.32 9.47
Others
At amortised cost
- interest on secUrity deposit - - 390/ 5.99
- interest on Fixed deposit 23.64 16.78 158 0.95
- inlerest on inter corporate deposit - - 4,608.00 4,125.12
23.64 16.78)| 4,613.48 4,132.06
Total other financial assets 232.69 224.99| 4,629.80| u,1a1.531

Note - Includes deposit amounting to Rs. 83.00 lakhs kept as DSRA with the bank (March 31, 2022: Rs. 83.00 lakhs given as security against guarantee issued by bank].




EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in Rupees lakhs unless atherwise stated)

Note 9 - Income tax assets (net)

March 31,2023]  March 31,2022]  March 31,2023] March 31, 2022
MNon-current| Non-current Current Current
Advance income-tay (net of provision for taxation) 388.93 -] =
Total income tax assets (net) - 388.93 - |
Note 10 - Deferred tax assets (net)
March 31,2023| March 31, 2022
Deferred tax assets (refer note 23) 114.40 183.98
Deferred tax (net) 114.40 183.98
Net deferred tax assets to be carried to balance sheet 114.40 183.98
Mote 11 - Other assets
March 31, 2023|  March 31, 2022] March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Non-ci Non-current Current| Current
Unbilled revenue 17,98 1.43 31.64] 61.43]
17.98] 1.43 31.64 f61.43
Advances recoverable In cash or kind
Unsecured, considered good - 105.33 166.64
Credit impaired - - 24.24 24.24
- - 129.57 190.88
Less: Impairment allowance - - 24.24 24,24
. - 105.33) 166.64
Other advances
Prepaid expenses 4.29 6.99 24.34 2164
Balances with government authorities . - 0.12] 1.40
Advances given to employees - - 0.82 3.79
4,29 6.99 25.28 26.83
Total other assets 22.27| 8.42 162.25| 254,90
Note 12 - Inventories {at lower of cost or Net realisable value (NRV))
March 31, 2023|  March 31, 2022
Food, beverages and other supplies 57.60] 3?.63]
Total inventaries 57.60 3?.63|



EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al amounts are in Rupees fakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 13 - Trade receivables

March 31, 2023]  Warch 31, 2022
Secured, considered good - 4245
Unsecured, considered good 408.01 109.99
Credit impaired 102.78 89,96
510.79 24240
Less - Allowance for credit impaired 102,78 89.96
Total Trade receivabl 408.01 152.44
For transactions with other related parties, refer note no 36
Trade receivable ageing as at March 31,2023
o] ding for following periods from due date of payment
Not due Le;sot:;: 8 6 months - Lyear | 1year-2year 2 year -3year |More than 3 years Total
Undisputed Trade receivables — considered 396.94 895 0.06 2.06 - 408.01
|good
Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have - - - - - -
significant increase in credit risk
Undisputed Trade Receivables —credit - 3.94 992 172 - 87.20 102.78
impaired
Disputed Trade Receivables considered - - = - = -
good
Disputed Trade Receivables — which have - = 5 E
significant increase in credit risk
Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - - E- - -
Total E 400.88 18.87 1.78 2.06 87.20 510.79
Trade receivable ageing as at March 31, 2022
0 ding for following periods from due date of payment
Not due I.e:n::r; 6 6 months - Lyear | 1year -2 year 2 year -3 year |More than 3 years Total
Undisp Trade recelvables — c idered 9.00 121.73 0.01 .14 - 13.56 152.44
|Eood
Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have = - . = = =
|significant increase in credit risk
Undisputed Trade Receivables —credit - 1.79 0.00 0.01 0.72 87.44 89.96
impaired
Disputed Trade Receivables  considerad = » X - B
|zood
Disputed Trade Recelvables — which have - - = - E 4
significant increase in credit risk
Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - E - = = * =
Total 9.00 123.52 0.01 8.15 0.72 101.01 242.40
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{all amounts are in Rupees lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 14 - Cash and cash equivalent

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks:
On current accounts 779.33 38563}
Cash on hand 2.30 2.28|
781.63 387.91
Note 14.1 - Other bank balances
March 31, 2023|  March 31, 2022
Other bank balances
Depaosits with original maturity of less than three months {refer note below) 230.63 72.20
230.63 72.20

Far the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

Includes deposit amounting to Rs. 74,46 lakhs {(March 31, 2022 of Rs.72.20 lakhs) given as security against guarantee issued b

y bank.

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Balances with banks:

—On current accounts 779.33 385,63
-Cash an hand 2.30 2.28
Total cash and cash equival 781.63 387.91
Changes in liabllities arising from financing activities

April 1, 2022 Cash flows| Changesin fair] March 31,2023

value

Non- current and current borrowings 9,462.26 (893.01) - 8,569.25
Total liabilities from financing activities 9,462.26 (893.01) - 8,569.25

April 1, 2021 Cash flows Changes in fair] March 31, 2022

value
Non- current and current borrowings 9,701.36 {239.10) 5 9,462.26
Total liabilities from financing activities 9,701.36 (239.10) - 9,462.26
Break up of financial assets carried at amortised cost
Non-current Current
March 31, 2023 | March 31,2022 | Warch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Trade receivables - - 408.01 152.44
Cash and bank balances - - 781.63 387.91
Other bank balances - - 230.63 72.20
Other financial assets 232,69 224.99 4,629.80 4,141.53
Total financial assets carried at amortised cost 232.69) 224.99| 6,050.07 4,754.08|




EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

[All amounts are In Rupees lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 15 - Equity share capital

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Authorised shares
1,10,00,000 (March 31, 2022: 1,10,00,000) equity shares of Rs.10 each 1,100.00 1,100.00
Issued, subscribed and fully pald-up share capital
1,02,04,000 (March 31, 2022: 1,02,04,000) equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up 1,020.40 1,020.40,
Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital 1,020.40 1,020.40|

(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period
There is no movement in the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting peried,

{b) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each hold

declared any dividend during the current and previous years,

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitied to receive remaining assets of the Company,

The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

{c) Shares held by holding/ ultimate holding company and/ or their subsidiaries/ associates

Out of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding company are as below:

er of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company has not

after distribution of all preferential amounts.

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Premsagar Infra Realty Private Limited, the ultimate holding company 645.40 645.40
64,54,000 (March 31, 2022: 64,54,000) equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid
(d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
Name of the shareholder As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Mo. of shares % holding No. of shares % holding
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid
Premsagar Infra Realty Private Limited 64,54,000 63.25% 64,54,000 63.25%
Mr. Atul I. Chordia 12,50,000} 12.25% 12,50,000 12.25%
Mr. Sagar |. Chordia 12,50,000| 12.25%) 12,50,000 12.25%
(e) Shareholding of promoters
As at March 31, 2023
Shares held by promoters at the end of the year % Change during the
5. No Promoter name No. of Shares % of total shares year
1 Premsagar Infra Realty Private Limited 64,54,000 63.25% E
2 Mr. Atul I. Chordia 12,50,000 12.25% =
3 Mr. Sagar |. Chordia 12,50,000 12.25% ¥
4 Ms. Meena Chordia 416,666 4.08% =
5 Ms. Yashika Shah 4,16,667 4.08% 5
& Mr. Yash Chordia 4,16,667 4.08% -
Total 1,02,04,000 100% =
As at March 31, 2022
Shares held by promoters at the end of the year % Change during the
S. No Promoter name Mo. of Shares % of total shares year
1 Premsagar Infra Realty Private Limited 64,54,000 63.25% =
2 Mr. Atul I, Chordia 12,50,000 12.25%
3 Mr. Sagar |. Chordia 12,50,000 12.25% =
4 Ms. Meena Chardia 4,16,666 4.0B% 5
5 Ms. Yashika Shah 4,16,667 4.08% =
6 Mr. Yash Chordia 4,16,667 4.08% -
Total 1,02,04,000 100% 2

The shareholding informatlon has been extracted from the records of the Company including register of shareholders / members and is based on the legal ownership of shares.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts are in Rupees lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 16 - Other equity

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Securities premium®
Balance as at the beginning of the year 6,471.98 65,471.58)
Change during the year - =
Closing balance 6,471.98) 6,471.98
Surplus in the statement of profit and loss**
Balance as at the beginning of the year 2,245.45 2,013.29
Profit for the year 1,453.84 232.15
Other comprehensive income/{loss) (8.59) 0.01
Net surplus in the statement of profit and loss 3,690.?ﬂ| 2,245.45
Tatal other equity 10,162.68] 8,717.43

*Securities premium reserves
The Company had issued equity shares at premium in prior years, and as a result securities premium was created. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes
such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

**Retained Earnings
Retained earnings are the profits/{loss) that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers from other reserves, dividends or other distributions paid to
shareholders. Retained earnings include re-measurement loss / (gain) on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

[All amounts are in Aupesas lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 17 - Borrowings
{Non-current)

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Miarch 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Mon-current portion|

Non-current portion

Current maturities

Current maturities

Term loans

Indian rupee loan 3 (secured) 1,710.52 2,275.49 567.41 569.86

Indian rupee loan 4 (secured) 5,200.11 5,004.76 793.21 612.15
65,919.63 8,280.25 1,360,62 1,182.01

The above amount includes

Secured borrowings 6,919.63 8,280.25 1,360.62 1,182.01

Unsecured borrowings 2 = - -

Total Borrowings 6,919.63 8,280.25 1,360.62 1,182.01

Notes:
Indian Rupee Loan 3 & 4

The term loans are secured by equitable mortgage on the property located - all piece & parcel of the land (plot A & B} bearing 5.No. 19 {part) & S.No, 20/1 to 20/6/1, 20/1 to 20/9 (part),
totally admeasuring 23,266 sq. mtr along with all present structure known as "Panchshil Techpark and "Courtyard Warriott" and any future construction together with available or
future available FSI/TDR thereon at village Hinjewadi, Hinjewadi Road, within the limits of PCMC, Taluka Havell, Disttict-Pune. The loan is further secured by stock and future receivables
from Courtyard Marriott and Panchshil Techpark. The loan is further hypothecated and escrow by any present and future rent of any other receivables belonging to the Company

incomes from Lhe operations at the hotel and from commercial operations at Hinjewad| and Panchshil Techpark; and personal guarantee of director Mr. A

tul Chordia.

The Indian Rupee loan 3 |s repayabile in 84 equal monthly installments starting from July 21, 2019 along with interest rate of MCLR + 30bps with annual reset, the interest rate is 7.50%

to 9.00 % per annum (March 31, 2022: 7.50%).

The Indian Rupee loan 4 is repayable in 132 unequal monthly installments starting from July 21, 2019 along with interest rate of MCLR + 80 bps with annual reset, the Interest rate is

8.00 % 10 9.25 % per annum (March 31, 2022: 8,00%).

Note 17 - Borrowings (current)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022/
(unsecured)
-Inter-carporate deposit repayable on demand 289.00 3
289.00) .
Note 18 - Other financial liabilities
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 fdarch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Non-Current| Non-Current Current| Current|
Security deposits 152.66 56.24 148.90 253.17
Employee related |iabilities . - 38,20 42.40
Retention money - - 2.36 0.30
Interest accrued s . 36.51 34.46
Total financial liabilities 152.66 56,24/ 225.97 330.33
Note 19 - Trade payables
March 31, 2023] March 31, 2022|
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 37) 21.38 12.14
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 527.87 869.00
Total trade payables 549.25 881.14
Trade payahle ageing as at March 31, 2023
o) fing for following periods fromdue date of payment
Unbilled Not due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Maore than 3 years Total
MSME 21.38 - - - 21.38
Others A71 44 3.96 0.22 52.26 527.87
Disputed dues — MSME = N = - -
Disputed dues - Others = - z - =
Total 492.81 3.96 0.22 52.26 549.25
Trade payable ageing as at March 31, 2022
Qutstanding for following periods fi date of pay t
Unbilled Not due Less than 1 year | 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
MSME - 10.59 - 1.05 0.51 12.14
Others 171.89 387.31 136.51 143.10 018 869.00
Disputed dues — MSME - - - - 3
Disputed dues - Others " = 5 -
Total 136.51 144.15 30.69 B881.14
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Motes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
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Mote 20 - Other liabilities

Warch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current| Current|
Advance from customers (Contract liabilities) 84.16 54.38
Others
TOS and other statutory dues payable 15.24 837
Value added tax and warks cantract tax payable 6.15 8.71
Goods and services tax payable 4463 38.86)
Employee related liabilities 7.32 5.44
Other liabilities - 13.70
157.50 129.46
Note 21 - Deferred revenue
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022|
Non current, Non current| Current]| Curreny
Deferred revenue 19.09 19,47 13.16 5.10
Total deferred revenue 19.09] 19.47 13.16] 5.10
March 31, 2023/ March 31, 2022
Opening Balance 24.57 3.44
Deferred during the year 8.06 24.42
Rel d to the stat t of profit and loss 038 3.29
Closing Balance 32,25 24.57
Nota 22 - Provisions
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Non current| Non current Current| Current|
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for leave encashment 3,86 1.60 6.65 1.35
Provisian for gratuity 29.73 24.22 11.69 4.85
Total provisions 33.59| 25.82 18.34 E.Z_l)i
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{A&ll amounts are in Rupees lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 23 - Current tax liabilities {net)

March 31, 2023 narch 31, 2022
Provision for income tax (net of current year advance tax} 22.42 4
Total current tax 22.42 -
liabilities (net)
Note 24 - Income Tax
The major components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 are:
Statement of profit and loss section
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current income tax:
Current income tax charge 488.10
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier peniods = ¥
Deferred tax:
Relating to arigination and reversal of temporary differences 72.47 29.10
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 560.57 29,10
OCl section
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during in the year: (2.89) 0,01
(2.89) 0.01
Total tax 557.68 29.11]
Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's d ic tax rate for the year ended
March 31, 2023/ March 31, 2022
Accounting profit before tax 2,014.41 261.25
Computed tax expense
At India's statutory income tax rate of 25.17% (March 31, 2022: 25.17%) 506.99 65.75
Current income tax charge
Adjustments far:
Expenses deduction of which is not allowed under Income Tax Act 4.43) s
Permanent differences on account of Ind AS adjustments 7.08
Interest on Income tax 19.11 E
Ajustment related to House Property Expense (3.19) (7.54)
other 2617 {29.11)
At the effective income tax rate of 27.68% [March 31, 2022: 11.14%]
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 560.57 29.10
Deferred tax relates to the following
Balance sheet S t of profit and loss St t of ch in OCI
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 Miarch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Differences in depreciation in block of fixed 74.81 120.01 (45.20) 17.75! & 1
assels as per tax books and financial books
Expenditure charged to the statement of profit 2165 17.89 3.77 (0.13) (2.89) 0.01
and loss in the current year but allowed for tax
purposes on payment basis
Unbilled revenue (4.53) (0.48) (#.05) 0.11 = N
Tax Losses - 2391 (23.91) (47.04)
Provision for doubtful 22.46 22.64 {0.18) 0.21 4 %
debts
Met deferred tax expense/(income) - - (68.57) (29.10) (2.89) 0.0
Net deferred tax ts/(liabilities) 114.40 183.98
Reflected in the balance sheet as follows
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Deferred tax liahility (a.53) (0.48)
Deferred tay assets 118.93 184,45
Deferred tax assets (net) 114.40 183.98

The Company offsets tax assets and hiabilities if and only if it has a legally enforcealile night to set o

ff current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the

deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.
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Motes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts are in Rupees lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 25 - Revenue from operations

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
A. Revenue from rental income 1,167.50] 979.67
Income from incidental activities 8.49 153
B. Revenue from contract with customers
|. Services transferred over time
From hotel operations
Room income 2.603.10 814,25
Other hotel services including banguet income and membership fees 198.77 51.85
2,801.87 866.10
I. Goods transferred at a point in time
From Sale of construction materials
Scrap sale 4,29 41.19
From hotel operations
Sale of food and beverages 1,682.03 717.30]
1,686.32 758.49
Total revenue from contract with customers 4,488,19 1,624.59)
Revenue from operations (net) 5,664.18] 2,605.79
Reconciliation of the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit & lass with the contracted price
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Revenue as per contracted price 4,488,19 1,624.59
Adjustments during the year “ 2
Revenue from contract with customers 4,488.18 1,624.59|
Note 26 - Other income
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Interest income on
Bank deposits 12.83 10.50]
On inter corporate deposit 537.31 557.39
On income tax refund 21.13 #
On others 4.33 4.33)
575.60| 572.22
Other non operating income
Profit on sale of PPE 20.72 -
Profit on sale of investments 1.21 8.56
21,93 B.56
Other
Other rental income 112.45 26,30
Provision written back 4,81 -
Miscellaneous income 74.36) 1.81]
191.62 28.11
Total other income 789.15 608.89|

Note 27 - Cost of sales

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Cost of food and beverages consumed

Inventory at the beginning of the year 37.63 35.77|
Add: purchases 429.61 192,48
467.24 228.25
Less: inventory at the end of the year 57.60 37.63
Cost of food and beverages consumed 409,64/ 190.62
Total cost of sales 409.64] 190.62
MNote 28 - Employee benefit
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Salaries, wages and bonus 591.20 459,08
Contribution to provident and other funds 40.75 2338
Gratuity expenses (refer note 34) 12.35 8.72
Staff welfare expenses 90,96 49,17
Total Employee benefit expenses 735.26 540.36
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Motes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in Rupees lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 28 - Other expenses

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Power, fuel and light 443.08 254.37
Rates and taxes 54,81 55.61
Insurance charges 14.37 13.64
Repairs and maintenance
Plant and machinery 22411 151.11
Buildings 218.97 44.76
Vehicle 1.62 2.94
Transport charges 35.48 6.15
Advertising and sales promaotion 27893 114,81
Travelling and conveyance 14,599 3.98
Printing and stationery 17.59) 777
Legal and professianal fees 93.95 77.50
Linen, laundry and cleaning 11B.94 53.05
Internet, telephone and other operating supplies 146.50 28.68]
Auditors' remuneration (refer note 29.01 below) 13.43 4.08)
Other incidental activity expenses (net) 53.29 36.88
Asset management charges 22,55 19.39
Management fees 104.69 18.92
Royalty 58.65 31.63
Security expenses 42.39 10,72
Provision for doubtful receivable/advance 17.62 083
Debit balance written off 26,94 4.10
Exchange loss (net) 33,00 13.54
CSR expenses (refer note 40) 893 9.72
Donation 0.43 :
Miscellaneous expenses 82.22 42.77
Total other expenses 2,127.48 1,006.95|
Note 29,01 - Auditors' remuneration
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
As auditor:
- Audit fee 13.39 4.00
Reimbursement of expenses 0.04 0.08
13.43 4.08|
Note 30 - Finance costs
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Interest expenses
- on bank facilities 744.47 772,57
- on inter corporate deposit 9.22 .
- financial instruments at amortised cost 8.68 4.02
- an athers 1,08 0.11
763.45 776.70|
763,45 776.70|
Other borrowing costs
Loan processing fees 4m 4.01
Bank charges 3.67 0.10
7.68| 4,11
Less: attributable to the qualifying assets - =
7.68) 4,11
Total finance cost 771.13 780,81
Note 31- Depreciation and amortisation expense
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 3) 270.41 306.53
Depreciation of investment property (refer note 4) 125.55 129.64
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 5) o i
Less: depreciation on assets relating to other incidental activity (0.55) {1.48]
Total depreciation and amortisation expense 395.41 434.69

Nate 32 - Earnings per share (EPS)

The following reflects the profit and shares data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Met profit after tax

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculation of basic and dilut

Basic and diluted earnings per share of face value of Rs. 10 each

1,445.25 232,16
\ 102.04 102.04
14,16 2,28
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EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
|All amounts are in Rupees lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 35 - Commitments and contingencies

a. Leases

Operating lease commit ts: where the Cc y is the lessor

The Company has leased out its commercial space along with interior fits- outs such as furniture and fixture, air-conditioners etc. on operating lease. The non-cancellable
lease term varies according to each rent agreement but is generally between 1-5 years, There are no restrictians imposed by the lease agreement.

Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable eperating |eases are, as follows:*

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Within one year 684.51 369.97
After one year but not more than five years 788.73 734.53
Above 5 years - =

b. Capital and other commitments

There are no capital and other commitments as at March 31, 2023 (March 31, 2022 i,

¢. Contingent liabilities

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Liabilities disputed - appeals filed with respect to:
Income tax on accourt of disallowances / additions {Company
appeals) 624.95 =
Goods and Service tax on account of valuation / input tax
credit 2.68 =
627.63 =

Note 36 - Related Party Disclosures

(i)  Names of related parties and related party relationship

A. Related parties where control exists

Holding company Premsagar Infra Realty Private Limited
Fellow subsidiary/Subsidary of Holding Company Panchshil Infrastructure Holdings Private Limited
Key Managerial Personnel M. Atul Chmd'a.

Mr. Sagar Chordia
Enterprise in which director is director or member ar his |CC Realty {India) Private Limited
relative is director ar member in the Company, LLP or firm Panchshi Corporate Park Private Limited

panchshil Realty and Developers Private Limited

Panchshil Foundation

Pune Express Infrastructure Private Limited

Lifestyle Interior LLP

Balewadi Techpark Private Limited.

A27 Online Services Private Limited
(ii) Transactions during the year:

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Reimbursement received
ICC Realty (India) Private Limited - 213
Panchshi Corporate Park Private Limited - 12.22
Interest Expenses
Balewadi Techpark Private Limited, 5.30) -
Premsagar Infra Realty Private Limited 3.88 -+
Interest income
AZZ Online Services Private Limited B.99 28.69
Pune Express |nfrastructure Private Limited 528.32 -
ICD taken
Balewadi Techpark Private Limited. 350.00
Premsagar Infra Realty Private Limited 120.00 4
1€D refund
Balewadi Techpark Private Limited 181.00
1CD refund received
A2Z Online Services Private Limited 94.00 194.00
Pune Express |nfrastructure Private Limited 87.23 -
Services rendered
Panchshil Infrastructure Holdings Private Limited 1.41 -
Panchshil Corporate Park Private Limited 0.09 12,05
ICC Realty (India) Private Limited - 6.81
Asset management charges
AZZ Online Services Private Limited 22.55 19.39
Other Income
Panchshil Realty and Developers Private Limited 60.02 -
Reimbursement of expenses
A2Z Online Services Private Limited - 0.02
ICC Realty (India) Private Limited 844 .59
Lifestyle Interior LLP 471 -
Corporate Social Responsibility expenses
Panchshil Foundation 8.93 9.72




EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts are in Rupees lakhs unless otherwise stated)

(iii) Balance outstanding:

Particulars As at As

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Interest receivable

A2Z Online Services Private Limited 769.70 761.61

Pune Express Infrastructure Private Limited 3,843.13 3,367.64

Interest payable

Balewadi Techpark Private Limited. 477 -

Premsagar Infra Realty Private Limited 3.49 -

ICD Taken

Balewadi Techpark Private Limited. 169.00 "

Premsagar Infra Realty Private Limited 120.00 E

ICD Given

AZZ Online Services Private Limited - 94.00

Pune Express Infrastructure Private Limited 5,199.77 5,287.00

Receivables

1CC Realty (India) Private Limited - 222

Panchshil Corporate Park Private Limited c 0.48

Panchshil Infrastructure Holdings Private Limited = 0.75

Payables

A2Z Online Services Private Limited 182 25.47

ICC Realty (India) Private Limited 19.47 10.70

Panchshil Corporate Park Private Limited 0.10

Note 37 - Details of dues to Micro and Small enterprises as defined under MSMED Act, 2006

The amounts that needs to be disclosed pertaining to Micro and Small enterprises as defined under MSMED Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2008)

are disclosed below:

As at March 31, 2023, Rs, 21.38 lakhs (March 31, 2022: Rs. 12.14 lakhs) was outstanding to the vendors having their status as Micro or Small enterprises ar its registration
with the appropriate authority under ‘The Micra, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2008', And the interest payable to them as per section 16 of the MSMED

Act, 2006 Is Rs. 0,02 lakhs {March 31, 2022: Rs. 2.36 lakhs).

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Year ended
March 31, 2022

1. Following are remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year

{a) The principal amount

(b} The interest due thereon

2. The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the amount of the
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

3. The amount of Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment
{which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding
the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006

4. The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting
year

5, The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years,
until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for
the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro,
small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

21.38

0.02

2.38

12,14

2,36




EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in Rupees lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 38 - Fair values

Set out below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company's financial instruments as of March 31, 2023

Amortised Cost Financial assets/liabilities Financial Total carrying value Total fair value
at fair value through profit| assets/liabilities at fair
and loss value through 0Cl

Financial assets
Investments . 0.82 - 0.82 0.82
Loans 5,199.77 - = 5,199.77 519997
Trade and other receivables 408.01 = - 408.01 408.01
Cash and cash equivalents 781.63 - E 781.63 781.63
Other bank balances 230.63 - - 230.63 230.63
Dther financial assets 4,862.49 . - 4,862.49 4,862.49
Total 11,482.53 0.82 - 11,483.35 11,483.35
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 8,569.25 - B,569.25 8,569.25
Trade and other payables 549.25 - - 540.25 549,25
Other financial liabllities 378.63 = - 378.63 378.63
Total 9,497.13 = = 9,497.13 9,497.13

Set aut below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fa

ir value of the Company's financial instruments as of March 31, 2022

Financial assets/liabilities
at fair value through profit

Amortised Cost

Financial Total carrying value

assets/liabilities at fair

Total fair value

and loss value through OC|

Financial assets

Investments - 70.01 - 70.01 70,01
Loans 5,381.00 - - 5,381.00 5,381.00
Trade and other receivables 152.44 - - 152.44 152.44
Cash and cash equivalents 38791 - . 387.91 387.91
Other bank balances 72,20 - - 72.20 72.20
Other financial assets 4,366.52 - - 4,366.52 4,366.52
Total 10,360.07 70.01 - 10,430.08 10,430.08
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 9,462.26 - - 8,462.26 9,062.26
Trade and other payables 881.14 - % 881,14 g881.14
Other financial llabilities 386.57 = - 457.30 457.30
Total 10,729.98 - - 10,800.70 10,800.70

The management assessed that cash and short-term deposits, trade receivables, trade payables, bank overdrafts and

amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

other current liabllities approximate their carrying

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction hetween willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

Investment in mutual funds

The fair value of investments in mutual funds is derived from the NAV of the respective units at the measurement date.

Fair value hierarchy

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s financial instruments measured at fair value after initial recognition:

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2023

Fair value measurement using
Date of valuation Total Quoted prices in active Significant Significant
markets (Level 1) observable inputs | unobservable inputs
{Level 2} ({Level 3)
Assets measured at fair value
Investments in units of mutual funds March 31 2023 0.82 - 0.82 -
Assets for which fair value are disclosed
Investment property March 31 2023 12,893.00 . B 12,893.00
Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and [iabilities as at March 31, 2022:
Fair value r 1t using
Date of valuation Total Quoted prices in active Significant Signlﬂcar_nt
markets {Level 1) observable inputs | unobservable inputs
{Level 2) (Level 3]
Assets measured at fair value
Investments in units of mutual funds March 31 2022 70.01
Assets for which fair value are disclosed
Investment property March 31 2022 12,465.00

There were no transfers between level 1 during the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.




EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited

Motes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in Rupees lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 39 - Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise trade payables and borrowings . The main purpose of these financial liahilities is to finance the Company's aperations and to support its
operations. The Company's principal financial assets includes trade receivables and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its aperations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees polictes for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below:

Market risk

Market risk js the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market prices comprise three types of risk: interest rate risk,
currency risk and other price risk such as equity price risk and commadity price risk. Financial instrurnents affected by market risk include borrowings and investments.

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022,
The sensitivity analysis have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt and the ratio of fixed-ta flosting interest rates of the debt are all constant as at March 31, 2023 and March 31,
2022,

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value ar future cash flows of a financial instrurment will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes
in market Interest rates relates primarily to the Company's long-term debt obfigations with floating interest rates.

Interest rate sensitivity
The following table demaonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion af loans and borrowings affected the Company profit before tax is affected through
the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Increase f decrease in| Effect an profit before
basis points tax
March 31, 2023
INH +50 {44.02)
-50 44.02
March 31, 2022
INR +50 (49.88)
-50 49,88

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes In forelgn exchange rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in
forelgn exchange rates refates primarily to the Company's operating activities (when revenue or expense |s denominated in a foreign currency)

Forelgn currency sensitivity

The follawing tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD exchange rates, with 3ll ather variables held constant. The impact on the Company's prafit before tax s due
to changes in the fair value of manetary assets and liabilities.

Change in USD rate March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
uso +5% 120 (0.23}
-5% (1.20) 0.23
Credit risk

Credit risk Is the risk thal a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading ta a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its
operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks, if any, and other financial instruments.

Trade receivables
The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer and the segment In which it works.
In case of real estate business, customer credit risk is managed by the Company's established policy, procedures and contral relating to customer credit risk management. For the fixed lease incorne,

the billing is done in advance L2, at the beginning of the manth and for variable lease rent and other maintenance charges, the credit period provided is 10 days, Thus there are no major trade
receivable balances outstanding at the year end. The maximum exposure to cradit risk at the reparting date |s the carrying valus of each class of financial assets disclosed in note 13.

|n case of hospitality business, credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company's established policy, procedures and cantrol refating to custamer credit risk management. Credit
quality of & customer is assessed based on an extensive credit rating scorecard and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment. Dltstanding customer receivables are
regularly menitored.

The Company assesses at each reparting date whether a trade receivable or a group of trade raceivables is impaired, The Company recognises lifetime expected eradit losses for all trade receivables
that do not constitute a financing transaction and which are due far mere than six months. The expected credit losses are messired at af amount equal to 12 month expected credit losses or atan

amaunt equal to the lifetima expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition. The Company uses a practical expedient by computing
the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on & provision matrix.

sat out below is the infarmation abaut the credit risk exposure of the Company's trade receivables using provision matrix relating to the hospitality business:

As at March 31, 2023

Particulars Mot due Within 120 days * More than 120 days * Total

ECL rate 0% 0% 100%

Estimated total gross carrying amount = 400,88 1p9.91 510.78

ECL - Simplified approach - (3.94) {38.84) 1102.78)
- 396.94 11.07 408.01




EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts are In Rupees lakhs unless otherwise stated)

As at March 31, 2022

Particulars Nat due Within 120 days * Maore than 120 days * Total
ECL rate 0% 0% 100%

Estimated tatal gross carrying amount : 132.52 109.88 242,40
ECL - Simplified approach = - (89.96) (89.96)
MNet carrying amount = 132,52 19.92 152.44

* Provision (s made for receivables where recavery is considered doubtful irrespective of the due date. Where an amount is outstanding for mare than 365 days the Company usually provides far the
same unless there is clear visibility of recovery.

Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s management in accordance with the Company's policy, Investments of surplus funds are made with
banks in terms of fixed deposits and in mutusl funds. Credit risk on cash deposits is limited as the Company generally invest in deposits with bariks and financial institutions with high credit ratings
assighed by international and domestic credit rating agencies.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk {s defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligatians on time or at a reasonable price, The Company's finance department s responsible for liquidity,
funding as well as settlement management. in addition, processes and polices related to such risk are overseen by senior manag 1t, Management monitors the Company's net liquidity position

o a monthly and quarterly basis through its seniar management meeting and board meetings. They use rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows,

The senior management ensures that the future cash flow needs are met through cash flow from the aperating activities and shart term borrowings from banks.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Campany's financial liabilities based on contractuz| undiscaunted payments:

Ond d Within 3 manths| 3-12 months| 1-5years| More than § years Total
As at March 31, 2023
Borrowings 289.00 288.01 1,076.63 5,106.63 1,808,898 8,569.25
Security depasit 148.90 - - 152 66| -] 301.56
Trade Payables - - 492,81 56.44 - 549.25
Other financial liabilities 3.49 7122 236 - - 71.07
Total 441.39 359.23 1,571.80 5,315.73 1,808.98 9,497.13
As at March 31, 2022
Borrowings . 288.67 89333 5,720.77 2,550.49 9,462.26
Security deposit 25317 - - 56.24 - 309.41
Trade Payables - - 569.79 311.35 - 881.14
oOther financial liabilities - 77.15 - - - 77.15
Total 253.17 365.83 1,463.12 6,097.36 2,550.49 10,729.97

Capital management
For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, securities premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The
primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios Inorder to support |ts business and maximise shareholder value,

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. Ta malntain or adjust the capital
structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors the capita| using gearing ratio. The Campany
includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings net off cash and cash equivalents.

March 21, 2023 March 31, 2022
Loans and borrowings [nate 17) 8,605,768 9,496,72
Less: cash and cash equivalents (note 14) 781.63 387.91
Met debt 7,824.13 9,108.81
Equity share capital [Note 15) 1,020.40 1,020.40
Other equity (Note 16) 10,162.68 B8,717.43
Total capital 11,183.08 9,737.83
Capital and net debt 19,007.21 18,846.64
Gearing ratio 41% 48%

No changes were made in the abjectves, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022,

Mote 40 - C5R expenses

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a corparate social responsibility (CSR) committee has been formed by the Company. The areas for CSR activities are the actwities mentioned in the
Schedule Vi of the Companies Act, 2013, Amount spent during the year on activities which are specified in Schedule VIt of the Companies Act, 2013 are as mentioned below :

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(2] Amount required to be spent by the 8.93 9.72
Company during the year
{b) Amount of expenditure incurred during 8.93 9.72
(c) shartfall at the end of the year, - .
(d) total of previaus years shortfall, - -
(&) reason for shortfall, A NA
{f) nature of CSR activities, Educational & medical Educational & midical

BXPEnsEs) BxpeEnsesf

(g) details of related party transactions, e.g., Contributien to| Contribution to Panchshil
cantribution to a trust controlled by the Panchshil Foundation Foundation charitable
company in relation ta C5R expenditure as charitable trust trust
per relevant Accounting Standard,




EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited

Notes ta financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al ameunts are in Rupees takhs unless otherwise stated)

MNoteal- Benami Properties Note
The Campany do not have any RBerami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property,

Mote 42 - Relationship with Stuck off companies

The Company has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956.

Mote 43 - Ratios

Numeratoy Denominatar Asat Asat % Increase Remarks
March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022 | [decrease in ratio

[a} Current ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 435 4.14 S| Not Applicabls

[b] Debt-equity ratio Total Debt Sharehaldar's Equity 0.74 n.57 -24% Mot Applicable

(c) Debt service coverage ratio Larnings {or debt service |Debt service = Interest & 123 083 ag%lincrease i on account of increase In Net profit

= Net profit after taxes + |Lease Payments + aftor Taxes. There is also an increase in princlpal
Mon-cash operating Principal Repaymeants repayments during the year.
{d) Return on equity ratio Met Profits after taxes —  |Average Shareholder's 014 0.02 a76%|Increase in Met Profit as compared to the
Preference Dividend Erquity previous year, Revenue and Net profit were
affected due to waves of COVID-19 in the
previous year. Hotel d to normal
operations in current year.

{e) Inventory turpover ratio Cost of goods sold Average |nventory B.60 5.19 66%| Cost of Sales has increased due to hotel segment]
returning to normal operations.

(f) Trade receivables wrpover ratio Met credit sales = Gross | Average Trade Recelvable 13.88 17.09 -19%| Not Applicable

credit sales - sales return
ie) Trade payables turnover ratio Met credit purchases = Average Trade Payables 466 136 2075 Payment regularised and increase in purchase
Gross credlt purchases - due to normal operations
purchase return
{h) Met capital turnover ratio Met sales = Total sales - [Waorking capital = Current 064 033 ag%|Increase in Net Profit as compared to the
silles return assets — Current liabilities previ year. R and Wet profit were
affected due to waves of COWID-18 In the
previous year. Hotel sepment returned to normal
aperations in current year

(i) Net profit ratio MNet Profit Net sales = Total sales - 0.26 0.09 186%|Increase in Net Profit as compared to the)

sales raturn previous year. Revenue and Net profit were
affected due to waves of COVID-19 in the
previous year, Hotel | to normall
operations in current year,

{i} Return on capital employed Earnings before interest | Capital Employed = 012 0.04 243%]| Increase in Net Profit as compared o the

and taxes Tangible Met Worth + previous year, Revenue and Met prafit were
Total Debt + Deferred Tax affected due to waves of COVID-19 in the
Linbil ity provious year, Hotel seg d 1o normal

oparalions in current year,

(k) Return on investment Profit before tax Average Net worth 0.19 0,03 B19%|Increase in Net Brofit as compared to the
previgus year, Revenue and Net profit were
affected due to waves of COVID-1% in the)
previous year, Hotel segment returned to normal
operations in current year,

Note 44 - The Company have not traded or invested In Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the linancial year,

Mote 45 - The Code an Soclal Security 2020 {"the Code’) relating te emplayes benefits, during the employment and post-employment, has recejved Presidential assent on September 28, 2020, The Code has
hesn publishec in the Gazette of India. Further, the Minlstry of Labour snd Employment has raleased draft rulas for the Code an November 13, 2020, However, the effective date from which the changes are
applicable Is yet to be notified and rules for guantilying the financial impact are also not yet issued.
The Company will assess the impact of the Code and will give sppropriate Impact in the finanicial staterments in the perlod in which, the Code hecomes effective and the related rules to determine the

financial impact are published.

Note 46 - The company is not required to file any quarterly returns or statements od current assels with banks or financial institutions

Note 47 - The management confirms that the company is not declared as wilful defaultar (as defined by RBI Circular) by any Bank or Financlal institution or other lender.

Note 48 - The company has complicd with the number of layars preseribed under clause {87) of section 2 of the Act readl with the Companies [Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017

Note 49 - The company does nat have any charpes or satisfaction which is yet Lo be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period,

Note 50 - Undiclosed income

The Company does not have any undisclosed income which is not recorded in the books of account that has been surrendered of disclosed as income during the year |previous year] in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 such as, search or survey o any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

Note 51 - Loans and sdvances

1) The Company has net advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entityles), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the und
{4} directly o indirectly fend of invest in ather persons ar entities identified in any mannar whatsoever by or on behalt of the company {Ultimate Reneficiarjes) o

[b)  provide any puarantec, seourity ar the like toer on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficaries

that the liary shall:

(it} The Company has not received any fund from any persan(s) or entity(fes), including fareign entities {Funding Party) with the understanding [whether recorded in wiiting or otherwise] that the Company

shall:

{a)  directly or indirectly lend ar [nvest in other persons or entities dentified In any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party {Ultimate Beneficianes) or
(b} provide any guarantee, security of the like on behall of the Ultimate Beneflcaries,




EON-Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts are in Aupees lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Mote 52 - The Company stores real ime data of 1s accounting software on a daily basis in India, except for hotel operations, where multiple softwares are used and the sejvers are physically locsted outside
India, Data for such application are backed up as per the respective service providers” policizs, which may not be on a daily basis.

Mote 53 - Previows year figures
Pravious year figures have heen regrouped/ reclassified, where necessary to confirm to this year's dassification,

The accompanying noles are an integral part of the Ind AS financial statemants.
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